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The New York State Unified Court System (UCS) thanks the vendors that submitted the 

questions below concerning the Website Redesign Services Request for Proposal (RFP) during 

and following the pre-bid conference held on July 27, 2023.  

Below are responses to those questions. Please note that some questions have been edited for 

anonymity or clarity. 

Vendor # 1 

Question # 1.1: Are there any conditions in the contract regarding profit on this project by 

contractors or subcontractors? 

 Answer: No. 

Question # 1.2: Does the State of New York have IT or tech-related wage rates that we must 

adhere to? 

Answer: Vendors must comply with New York’s minimum wage legislation. There are no 

IT-specific minimum wage requirements applicable to this procurement. 

Vendor # 2 

Question # 2.1: We are under the impression that UCS is conducting a content audit, and that 

UCS is expecting the content audit to be finished by the time the selected vendor comes onboard. 

Please respond to the following relative to this content auditing effort (will help us to understand 

exactly what tasks might still be necessary subsequent to award): 

a. Please explain the audit methodology that is being used.   

b. What are the main objectives of the audit?  

c. What sorts of insights does UCS expect to derive from the audit?  

d. What tools are being used to track the observations?  

e. If spreadsheets or some other manner of standard form are being used to 

accomplish the analysis, can UCS please provide sample data? Or could the UCS 

otherwise provide a list of the datapoints being collected?  

f. What tangible outcomes will be generated by the audit? Will there be some sort of 

formalized report of the results? If so, can UCS share a sense of the scope of 

topics that will be covered? 
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Answer: 

a. UCS staff members are manually reviewing all content sections/pages in UCS’s public 

and private websites. This is done by viewing the content in a web browser, looking at the 

folder structure on the web server,  reviewing available WebTrends and Google 

Analytics, as well as looking at work request emails to identify the existing stakeholders. 

b. and c. To determine: (i) What legacy (non-Drupal) content needs to be archived, 

rewritten, or restructured, and which of that content needs to be moved into Drupal; and 

(ii) Which of UCS’s current Drupal content needs to be archived, rewritten, or 

restructured. 

d. Except as explained above, there are no other tools being used. 

e. Data is being collected in an Excel file. The data points are as follows: Site URL, 

Server, Monthly Views, Site Rank (Traffic), Editors, Reviewers, Training Completed 

(Editors), Approvers/Owners, # of pages, Last Updated, Site Purpose, Content Types 

Used, Last Audit Date, Name of Auditor, Comments, Should content be: Updated, 

Rewritten for Plain Language, Formatted for eye scanning, or Deleted? 

f. This will be determined after analysis by, and in collaboration with the selected vendor. 

Question # 2.2: Is UCS anticipating that the refreshed sites will use a component-driven content 

scheme? If so, please answer each of the following: 

a. Will fully detailed plans for the scheme be shared with the selected vendor, or 

will the vendor need to work with UCS to conceive the scheme? 

b. Does UCS presently anticipate that all resulting sites (internet, intranet, subsites, 

etc.) will ultimately share the same components? 

c. Does UCS already have a sense of the anticipated component scheme? If so, can 

UCS please provide bidders with some detail of what is presently envisioned? 

Perhaps a simple list of the necessary component types?  

Answer: Yes, UCS anticipates that the refreshed sites will use a component-driven 

content scheme. Responses to the sub-questions are provided below. 

a. The vendor will need to work with UCS to identify and formulate the scheme. 

b. and c. If practical, the “locations” and “people” content types should be shared 

across all resulting sites. If that is not possible, the “locations” and “people” content 
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types should be shared across all of the public-facing web sites. UCS does not have any 

further information to share about the anticipated component scheme. 

Question # 2.3: It sounds like UCS is intending to accomplish a migration to Drupal 10 that will 

most likely be finished by the time the selected vendor is brought onboard. Since UCS is doing 

this migration now, immediately prior to award, we are accordingly curious what the expectation 

would be relative to solution implementation. Would UCS expect the selected vendor to provide 

a yet another wholly new Drupal instance, and thereafter accomplish another migration? Or is it 

rather the expectation that the selected vendor will continue to work with the Drupal 10 instance 

that UCS is already putting place?  

Answer: UCS will look to the vendor’s expertise and recommendations on this issue. (See 

Section 5.2.1.1 on pages 11–12 of the RFP for more information). 

Question # 2.4: In the response to question 21.10(b) in the initial Q&A document, UCS 

indicated that it “needs a content strategy.” The notion of “content strategy” can be interpreted in 

very broad terms.  Can UCS please clarify what it means by this? What exactly is UCS asking 

the vendor to provide? (ex. governance is often considered a part of content strategy, but it seems 

apparent that UCS has already planned a new a governance scheme, suggesting that another 

aspect of content strategy is likely the point of interest). We just want to be precisely clear on 

exactly what UCS had in mind in this regard.  

Answer: UCS will look to the vendor to help us leverage whatever strategies or 

technologies are available to: (i) Make the updating of content as easy as possible; 

(ii) Make the content user-friendly (both easier to find and more readily understandable); 

and (iii) Ensure that UCS content is standardized across the enterprise, as much as 

possible. 

Question # 2.5: In the initial Q&A document, Question # 26.16 inquired about work that has 

already been done to make the existing sites mobile responsive. The answer to that item from 

UCS indicated that the Drupal 9 content has already been setup to render appropriately for 

mobile devices. We are accordingly curious how the work that has been done would have a 

bearing on the new contract. If the vendor is providing new theming, why would the current 

mobile responsiveness of the existing Drupal 9 platform matter? Is UCS anticipating that the new 

site will continue to make use of any of the same mobile responsive code? If so, please explain.     

Answer: UCS does not require that the existing Drupal 9 mobile responsive code be used 

going forward, only that the new site(s) are mobile responsive. Furthermore, UCS fully 

expects all of its existing Drupal 9 content to have already been migrated into Drupal 10 

prior to the awarding of the vendor contract. 
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Question # 2.6: The RFP and initial Q&A plainly expressed some interest in enabling publishing 

across multiple sites. However, the expectations relative to ongoing content sharing were less 

clear. Is UCS also expecting the ability to maintain shared content in a centralized manner? (i.e., 

the ability to edit once, in one place, and then, as a result of the one edit, have the updates 

instantly pushed-out to all appearances of the pertinent content across all UCS properties)? 

Answer: See answer to Question # 2.2 (b) and (c), above. 

Question # 2.7: In UCS’s response to Question # 14.19 in the initial Q&A, UCS indicated that 

UCS is “currently only able to publish one Drupal page at a time.” It was moreover indicated 

that, “It would be beneficial for UCS to be able to publish a series of pages or even a set of 

subsites all at the same time.” We want to be sure we understand what is being requested here. Is 

UCS referring to the ability to send content live? Are we correct in thinking that UCS wants 

some sort of batch control, allowing multiple pages to be simultaneously approved for live 

display? If something else is being requested here, please explain further.   

Answer: Yes, UCS is looking for some way (batch control) whereby ONLY members with 

“publishing rights” (i.e., the OCA-WebTeam) would be able to send multiple pages of 

content LIVE, all at the same time. (Roles defined as “content-editors” will not need this 

ability). 

Question # 2.8: Regarding Component # E1 of Exhibit D, we would like to receive some 

indication of UCS’s tolerance for narrative as a part of bidders’ responses. We could easily 

answer Component # E1 with 15–20 pages of material, combining charts/timelines of significant 

steps/phases and corresponding explanatory narrative. In fact, it would seem that some of the 

information that we could submit in response to Component # E1 would actually be sufficient to 

address other items in the RFP as well. We certainly don’t want to be disqualified for including 

too much content for Component # E1, when the guidelines otherwise seem to indicate that our 

responses to Component # E1. will not be counted against the 60-page limit. We previously 

posed this question in the prior Q&A, and also asked the question during the pre-bid conference. 

We have yet to receive an answer and were told that UCS would need to discuss the matter 

further and get back to us. Please provide some guidance as to how we should proceed.   

Answer: UCS requests that vendors limit the information included in the Work 

Breakdown Structure (WBS) and associated initial schedule mentioned in Component E1 

to a visual, hierarchical, and deliverable-oriented deconstruction of the website redesign 

project. The WBS and initial schedule should convey only the information necessary to 

provide UCS with a visual representation (and associated timeline) of how and when the 

vendor will accomplish the essential tasks associated with vendor’s proposed solution. 

UCS expects the WBS to convey a high-level overview of how the vendor will organize 

the various discrete tasks associated with completing the website redesign project, and 

the vendor’s initial schedule should offer a timeline showing when the vendor proposes 
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that the Project Team begin those tasks, when the Project Team’s efforts should focus its 

efforts on those tasks, and when the Project Team should complete those tasks. Vendors 

should refrain from padding these documents with information that is too voluminous to 

include in the main narrative, which has a maximum number of pages. 

Vendor # 3 

Question # 3.1: Regarding 5.2.2 Needed Features (J) - Integration of UCS internal PeopleSoft 

HR Directory (via data downloads) with the new intranet site so that users have access to an up-

to-date directory of court employees along with their titles and contact information: 

a. Can you provide more info as to what mechanisms are available to pull down this 

data? 

b. How frequently is this data pulled? 

Answer: UCS expects this will be done by scheduled file transfer of an extract from the 

PeopleSoft system once a day. 

Vendor # 4 

Question # 4.1: Could you provide additional details on what a successful use case for your 

enterprise-wide search would look like? 

Answer: For example, if a user inputs the keyword term “Name,” the search engine 

would provide a drop-down of common terms that start with that word. In this instance, 

since the user is looking to change his or her name, the user could select “Name Change 

Form” from the dropdown. Search results would be provided, including an option for a 

more “advanced search.” Advanced Search would include the ability to: sort results by 

date or doc type (web page, pdf, .xls, or ppt), or even find links to referring pages. 

Question # 4.2: Are you considering implementing a single-sign-on solution for log-ons? This 

would enable you to track user access to pages such as the Town and Village Courts. 

Answer: Yes, UCS is looking to integrate our Active Directory credentials within Drupal. 

That will not solve the need for credentialing user groups, such as Town & Village 

Justices, that do not have access to the UCS private network. A separate mechanism will 

need to be in place to generate and track credentials for such users. 

Vendor # 5 

Question # 5.1: Figma is considered the modern industry standard for creating and managing 

visual wireframes and mockups. In modernizing www.nycourts.gov to the most current version 

http://www.nycourts.gov/
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of Drupal, we do not recommend creating or converting website mockups and wireframes into 

Adobe Illustrator or Photoshop as it would have limited value and the conversion cost could be 

excessive. As an alternative and as per our recommendation, would NYS Courts be willing to 

use a tool like Figma to manage design system/web components, wireframes, and mockups? 

When leveraging a modern solution image editing and more intricate illustration, such as 

iconography, logos, and artistic elements, can be done in Photoshop and Illustrator. However, 

Figma (or a similar product such as Sketch) is necessary when designing large and complex 

websites.  

 Figma has features such as: 

• Component libraries that act both as a source of truth to ensure every web page stays 

visually consistent as well as increase the pace of designing mockups 

• Prototyping tools to quickly demonstrate interaction 

• File structure that allows designers to make sense of large projects 

• Live collaboration so multiple people can work on and manipulate files and designs at the 

same time 

A Figma license costs $45 to $75 per month per editor (typically one license per contributing 

designer). Also we do not profit or earn a commission if one of our clients becomes a Figma 

customer but we do recommend it or similar products to be leveraged in our implementations. 

Answer: Yes. The toolkit UCS uses is based on the Adobe Creative Suite products. 

Consequently, the awarded contractor must ensure all image layers and assets, such as 

fonts, can be exported out of Figma and into Adobe without the layers merging together. 

UCS would consider keeping wireframes and mockups in Figma, as long as: (i) The 

vendor can demonstrate the benefits of such; and (ii) All other image assets, such as 

icons, logos, photos, etc., are done in Photoshop or Illustrator.  

Vendor # 6 

Question # 6.1: Could you kindly forward the recorded session, as no one on our team has 

received it? 

Answer: The video for the pre-bid conference is available in the row corresponding to 

RFP # OCA-133 (Website Redesign Services) at the following link: 

https://ww2.nycourts.gov/admin/bids/currentsolicitations.shtml  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.figma.com%2Fpricing%2F&data=05%7C01%7CJSTHILA%40NYCOURTS.GOV%7C20739083d2cd4e874bd608db95023729%7C3456fe92cbd1406db5a35364bec0a833%7C0%7C0%7C638267608986474703%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=BGqL6mkJmwnLjIqgSpLwturAlZhNe7drUu%2BNFp9g75k%3D&reserved=0
https://ww2.nycourts.gov/admin/bids/currentsolicitations.shtml
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Vendor # 7 

Question # 7.1: In response to the initial Q&A’s Question 5.5 about brand guidelines, UCS 

stated that they would display excerpts of their current Standards & Guidelines manual during 

the pre-bid conference. Since this was not shown, would it be possible to share a sample excerpt 

from the manual? 

Answer: UCS previewed the Standards & Guidelines manual during the pre-bid 

conference. That appears at the 52:20 mark of the recorded video. Three of the pages 

shown during that video appear as Exhibit A at the end of this Q&A document. 

Question # 7.2: Item H1 in Exhibit D indicates that marketing and public relations guidance 

should be included in the Standards and Guidelines Manual. Can UCS provide additional 

information on their expectations around this topic? 

a. Is it expected that the vendor develop a communications plan for site roll out? If 

so, is there an expectation of associated content development? 

b. Do you anticipate that the expected guidance applies only to content on the site, 

or also to broader communications? 

c. Is there any current documented marketing or public relations guidance that UCS 

follows more broadly that we would be able to review prior to submission? 

Answer: 

a. No. That will be handled internally. 

b. Mainly, site content. The UCS Director of Communications will direct broader 

communications. 

c. No. 

Question # 7.3: Regarding the form, Attachment-I (Standard Clauses  Forms NYS UCS), page 

7, this form is not applicable. How should this be handled? Should we just leave it blank? 

Answer: If you have no information to report on the “Manufacturer’s Affidavit of 

Recycled Content” form, then please indicate as such on the form and submit with your 

proposal.   

Vendor # 8 

Question  # 8.1:  The following question (highlighted) was posed during the pre-bid conference 

held on July 27, 2023. For context, an edited and redacted portion of the discussion that preceded 

the question is included: 
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[Vendor # 8]:  So is the content audit you mentioned that’s part of the project: that's not part of 

what vendors would attempt to do before they submitted a proposal. The content that will be part 

of the scope of work? 

[UCS]: I think because we would view ourselves as the content experts and most familiar with 

the content, we would take a first stab at that in conjunction with our content audit and then 

present that and hope that the vendor would have expertise to say, “Alright, this looks good. That 

is not a great idea, or let's go in a different direction.” 

Again, it’s sort of a collaborative effort, but you would not be starting from ground zero, 

hopefully. 

[Vendor]: OK. So just as we’ve gone through this. It sounds like how much information, 

information architecture, how much restructuring, how much design that might be needed for the 

next version of the Internet is kind of a bit open. The scope of work is kind of open on that, and 

we don’t also know how the different content types function. As part of the bid, are you 

expecting an estimate of what we think it might take to rebuild this, or are you expecting a fixed 

bid? Can you provide any feedback on that? 

Answer: The selected vendor is expected to build on—but not replicate—discovery work 

that UCS has already completed as UCS described in the RFP and during the pre-bid 

conference. UCS recognizes that additional discovery work is needed and is looking to 

the selected vendor to finalize that work within the scope of the website redesign project. 

Vendors must submit a fixed-price payment schedule for each category listed in Table 

One of Exhibit A, which includes all website redesign service costs, one-time onboarding 

costs, and costs for licenses. As explained in Section 4.1 on page 9 of the RFP, website 

redesign costs include costs for project management services, information architecture 

services, content scrubbing services, services to establish content development standards, 

training services, graphical design and branding services, and testing services. Vendors 

must also submit pricing on a time and materials basis for post-project technical support 

as described in Table Two of Exhibit A. 

Vendor # 9 

Question  # 9.1:  The following question (highlighted) was posed during the pre-bid conference 

held on July 27, 2023. For context, an edited and redacted portion of the discussion that preceded 

the question is included: 

[Vendor]: In terms of the bid: since it seems like there is a lot of discovery and probably very 

fruitful discussion, are you open to the proposal being phased, or do you want it to be as flat fee 

as we can imagine at this point? 
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Answer: Using Exhibit A (Pricing Sheet), vendors must submit a fixed-price payment 

schedule for each category listed in Table One of Exhibit A, which includes all website 

redesign service costs, one-time onboarding costs, and costs for licenses. As explained in 

Section 4.1 on page 9 of the RFP, website redesign costs include costs for project 

management services, information architecture services, content scrubbing services, 

services to establish content development standards, training services, graphical design 

and branding services, and testing services. Vendors must also submit pricing on a time 

and materials basis for post-project technical support as described in Table Two of 

Exhibit A. 

Regarding phasing the work, vendors must submit an initial schedule and an associated 

Work Breakdown Structure pursuant to Component E1 (see Exhibit D on page 40 of the 

RFP). 

Vendor # 10 

Question  # 10.1:  The following question (highlighted) was posed during the pre-bid conference 

held on July 27, 2023. For context, an edited and redacted portion of the discussion that preceded 

the question is included: 

[Vendor]: This pertains to the IT administration process. Specifically, it’s a question about 

responses to E1, which is, I believe, where you wanted our work breakdown structure. What is 

the tolerance for narrative submission in relation to that component, because the pages are not 

counted? I’m trying to get a sense of exactly what is permissible to include in that section. I 

could include a great deal of information in a work breakdown narrative that would clarify 

everything. So, how much tolerance is there for information about the work approach in that 

particular item? Can I give you 15 pages, or are you just looking for a chart?  

Item E1 asks for a work breakdown structure, and it specifically indicates that the response to 

that will not be included in the page count. So, I'm asking what the tolerance is for information to 

be submitted in relation to that. Can I provide narrative response, or are you just expecting a 

table? What is acceptable there? 

Answer: UCS requests that vendors limit the information included in the Work 

Breakdown Structure (WBS) and associated initial schedule mentioned in Component E1 

to a visual, hierarchical, and deliverable-oriented deconstruction of the website redesign 

project. The WBS and initial schedule should convey only the information necessary to 

provide UCS with a visual representation (and associated timeline) of how and when the 

vendor will accomplish the essential tasks associated with vendor’s proposed solution. 

UCS expects the WBS to convey a high-level overview of how the vendor will organize 

the various discrete tasks associated with completing the website redesign project, and 

the vendor’s initial schedule should offer a timeline showing when the vendor proposes 
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that the Project Team begin those tasks, when the Project Team’s efforts should focus its 

efforts on those tasks, and when the Project Team should complete those tasks. Vendors 

should refrain from padding these documents with information that is too voluminous to 

include in the main narrative, which has a maximum number of pages. 
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Exhibit A – Excerpts from the UCS Standards & Guidelines Manual 
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